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The William Lindsay Long Log House 1s located at 9385 Pardee Road, at the Northwest 
corner of Pardee Spur. It is a two-story rectangular structure with gable roof. 
A one-story porch extends the length of the south-facing front of the house, and 
a one-story lean-to across most of the rear. This lean-to was adapted after 1930 
so that the eastern portion, corresponding to the house itself, could be used as 
a kitchen and work-space, while the western portion extending about twelve feet 
west of the house continued in use as a rear entrance and shed. A large irregularly 
shaped greenhouse has been attached to the west end of the house south of the shed. 
All these additions date from after 1930 and are outside the scope of the building's 
architectural significance.'

EXTERIOR

The main historic block of the house measures 40 feet, 8 inches by 20 feet 6 inches. 
It is composed of heavy logs with wooden window and door frames, wooden gables and 
two large limestone chimneys, one at each end. The wooden portions are stained a 
dark brown color. The roof is dark brown as are the porch and shed-roofs.

Openings

Windows. There are six windows opening from the second floor, three to the North 
and three to the South. All of them are original.' The windows are casement-type, 
each having two panels of two panes each. The center window on the south side has 
been altered to permit installation of an air-conditioner.

Only one window on the ground floor is original, the easternmost one on the north 
elevation. It matches those on the second story. The former center window on the 
north elevation of the ground floor is now inside the building between living room 
and dining room. Its casements are removed but otherwise it survives 1n original 
condition.

Windows in the rear shed are arranged 1n three groups. The west and central group 
consist of three small casement windows, each having one panel of three panes down 
and two across. The eastern group forms a bay window, with one large fixed pane in 
the center and side panels of three panes down and two across.

The windows opening out onto the front porch are all of the same type, two-panel 
casements, each panel having five panes down and two across. Two of these windows 
are grouped with the living room door on the east half of the south elevation, 
and the other one is on the west half, grouped with glazed double doors leading into 
the dining room.

Ooorways. There are now six doorways opening from the original portion of the house, 
none of which has an original frame. The two doorways on the original north eleva 
tion now open into the shed-kitchen and are doorless. The two doors on the south 
elevation opening onto the front porch, as well as the southern door in the west 
elevation opening into the greenhouse, are all glazed. The living room door has 
five panes down and three across; the door from dining room to front porch is double,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The William Long Log House, 9385 Pardee Road, Crestwood, Missouri, is 
significant as a well-preserved example of a type of farm dwelling common to the 
early settlers of St. Louis County. It is associated with a family who were 
prominent among the earliest English-speaking settlers of St. Louis County, and 
who later were associated with their neighbor Ulysses S. Grant.

The Long Family

The father of William Long, John Long, was born in Port Royal, Virginia, in 
1755, and fought in the American Revolution. He married, in 1781, Elizabeth 
Bennett of Philadelphia, the daughter of the Rt. Hon. James Oliver Bennett, M.P. 
for Cardigan, Wales, and his wife Elizabeth Fenton. (Later Longs claimed descent 
from a fictitious Earl of Fenton.) After the Revolution, John Long captained the 
ship "Dolphin" which plied between Philadelphia and Liverpool. In 1794 the family 
moved to Kentucky and from there in late 1796 to St. Louis County, where they 
settled several miles northwest of the present house at the area called Bonhomme 
near the Missouri River. The Following year Lawrence Long, who was probably John 
Long's brother, came from Kentucky and obtained property in the same area. 2 
Lawrence built a saw and grist mill that became the nucleus of the settlement of 
Chesterfield. He died in 1803 leaving five sons and three daughters, and a widow, 
the former Priscilla Cogswell, who later married George Gordon. This branch of 
the family achieved distinction of a dubious kind in 1809 when George Gordon was 
shot and killed at the mill by his stepson John, called John Long Jr. John Long 
Jr. was tried, convicted and executed in the same year, the first man in the County 
to be hanged.

"Captain" John Long and his wife had four children, the eldest of whom was 
Isabella (1783 or 85-1866). In 1800 Isabella married James Mackay (1759-1821 or 23), 
a Scotsman who had come to Missouri as early as 1795 and who acted as deputy to the 
Spanish commandant, Zenon Trudeau. Mackay had a large Spanish land grant on the 
Gravois Creek (Survey No. 9, Township 44 North Range 6 East) and this perhaps 
motivated Captain John Long to move to that neighborhood in 1807.3 He obtained 
additional land there from the new American government, and died in 1826. Of his 
other children, Nancy (1787-1862) married Eli Musick (1778-1859) who founded the 
First Baptist Church in St. Louis and Concord Baptist Church (1809) a few miles 
from the Gravois, and who was related to Thomas and William Musick, who were still 
more eminent Baptist missionaries in Missouri. John Long, born 1791 or 1792, was 
lost in the War of 1812, possibly drowned at Cap au Gris in 1814.
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each side having five panes down and two across; the door from dining room to 
greenhouse has six panes down and two across. The sixth door replaces a window 
on the north end of the west elevation and now leads into a stone bathroom.

The chimneys located on east and west ends of the house are not matching but both 
are made of roughcut fieldstone. The eastern chimney projects about four feet from 
the wall-line. The western chimney 1s flush with the wall. It is exposed up to a 
point about four feet above the ground,but thereafter it is enclosed within the wall.

Roof

The ordinary gable roof is covered with asphalt shingles. The front porch and rear 

shed-kitchen have roofs similarly covered.

Decorative Details

The front porch has a stone base and floor and a stone wall running its length 
and extending about one and a half feet above the floor level.

A structural break is evident in the center of the south front, apparently indicating 
two separate periods of construction.

INTERIOR 

oasement

The basement of the Long House has fieldstone walls about two feet thick. While the 
other perimeter of the basement follows the dimensions of the house above, inside 
the northeast corner is unexcavated and is closed off by a semicircular wall.

An exterior stone stairway enters the basement from the east .at the southeast corner. 
At the west end, the base of the chimney extends about two feet into the room.

Modern partitions of wallboard on light wood frames divide the space into four rooms. 
The L-shaped staircase ascends from the center of the south wall.

First floor

The first floor is divided into two rooms by a thin wooden partition.

The non-original L-shaped staircase is located in the southwest corner of the east 
room, ascending from the south wall westward and then northward.
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Fireplace hearths of stone extend about two feet into each room.

A kitchen has been installed in the shed to the rear (north) of the original building 
A small bathroom has been built against the west wall to the north of the fireplace.

Secohd floor

The second floor has been divided by modern partitions into two bedrooms, a central 
hall, and a bath, with related closets. The space west of the central staircase 
and hall is one large room, while the space to the east is divided into two rooms: 
the second bedroom to the south and the bathroom to the north, which has an elevated 
floor. The west bedroom has a fireplace of white painted stone.

ALTERATIONS

The Long Log House was altered during the nineteenth century by addition of clap 
board siding and by the addition of a front porch and rear one-story shed.3 

After 1930, the clapboard siding was removed and concrete mortar inserted between the 
logs in place of the original mud. At the same time the front porch and rear shed 
were rebuilt along their original lines, the rear shed being adapted as a kitchen. 
The cellar was expanded, and interior partitions altered to adapt the house to sub 
urban life. Subsequently, a greenhouse was added to the west of the house, and a sep 
arate garage was built.

In 1977 a minor fire on the interior of the house necessitated substantial repairs, 
including a new asphalt shingle roof, a new stairwell and stairs, new guttering, and 
new kitchen cabinets. Repairs were made to floors, the electrical system and the 
fireplaces. All window glass was replaced with old glass from other sources.

CONDITION

The Long Log House is in good condition following repairs made in 1977, as described 
above.

SITE

The original Long Farm has been reduced to slightly less than two and a half acres. 
The surrounding property has been developed largely since World War II as a residential 
district within the City of Crestwood. The remaining site was extensively landscaped 
after 1930 in the English picturesque style made familiar by the English gardener 
Gertrude Jekyll (1843 - 1942) in publications from 1900 on (eg. Wood and Garden), and 
exemplified in this country by the work of Beatrix Farrand, (eg. the Gerish Milliken 
garden, "The Haven", in Northeast Harbor, Maine.)''
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PRESENT STATUS

The St. Louis County Parks and Recreation Department owns the Long Log House, which 

is presently occupied by a resident caretaker.

NOTES

1. Historic American Buildings Survey: Mm. Long Log House, Sheets 1 and 3.

2. _Ibid^ sheet 4.

3. Photographs in the collection of St. Louis County Parks and Recreation Department.

4. Deborah Thompson, ed., Maine Forms of American Architecture (Camden, Maine: Down- 

east Magazine, 1976), pp. 271-272.
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William Lindsay Long, the elder son, was born in 1789. In 1808 he married 

Elizabeth Sappington, one of the seventeen children of John Sappington, a 

Revolutionary War veteran who owned the Spanish grant just northwest of James 

Mackay's. (The house of Thomas Sappington, elder brother of Elizabeth, is still 

standing on the grant and is listed on the National Register of Historic Places.) 

Following his marriage, William Long built a house on the eastern side of Gravois 

Creek in James Mackay's land grant. This house, known as "White Haven" is still 

standing, a two-story white painted frame structure with a two-story gallery on 

the South side. In 1818 he sold this house to Captain T. Hunt, who in turn sold it 

to Col. Frederick Dent, the father of Mrs. U. S. Grant. 4

William Long was appointed Ensign in the 4th Company of the 1st Battalion of 

the 1st; Regiment, commanded by Alexander McNair (later to be the state's first 

Governor) in December 1811, that is, even before the outbreak of the War of 1812. 

His fellow officers in the 4th Company were two of his wife's brothers, Zephaniah 

Sappington, Captain; and Thomas Sappington, Lieutenant. Long was recommissioned in 
1813. 5 ~

In 1818, William Long laid out the town of Fenton, named for his Welsh 

ancestress, on land bought from Antoine Soulard. Fenton is located on the south 

side of the Meramec River at the far end of the Gravois Road, about four miles 

from Gravois Creek. The town's low-lying position in relation to the river and 

distance from the more developed trade routes of the area inhibited its growth 

until well into the twentieth century. Unsuccessful as a city father, Long 

moved back to the Gravois Creek neighborhood in 1820, where he built his third 

house on the northwest portion of James Mackay's land. This is the subject of 

this nomination. Apparently, the east half of the house was built first, but the 

other portion must have been added soon afterward. It is two stories in height 

with two chimneys, not as large as White Haven, but substantial for a building of 

log construction."

William Lindsay Long and Elizabeth Sappington had eleven children of whom two 

died in infancy. Of their three sons, two were born at White Haven, Harrison L. 

(1813-1875) and John Fenton (1816-1888). The youngest, Thomas Sandford (sometimes 

written Sanford) was born in the present house in 1827 and died in 1899.

The Longs were slave owners, and several documents survive which illuminate their 

purchase, sale and gift of slaves. Probably their houses were built by slave labor.

In less than two weeks of July, 1849, an epidemic of cholera took four members 

of the Long Family; Elizabeth S. Long died on the 3rd, William L. Long on the 9th, 

their daughter Harriette (Mrs. Charles Brown) on the 10th, and Kessiorah Kendall, 

the wife of son Harrison on the 14th.7 In the subsequent distribution of property, 
Harrison Long inherited the farm of his grandfather Captain John Long, while Thomas 
Sandford Long remained on the main property.8
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The second son, John Fenton Long, went to college in St. Charles, Missouri,at 
the age of sixteen and opened a private school in the Gravois Creek area four 
years later. It was here that he is said to have taught his neighbor Julia Dent. 
Her subsequent marriage to Ulysses S. Grant began a lifelong friendship between 
the two men. About 1850, John F. Long moved to the city of St. Louis, where he at 
various times served as Superintendent of County Roads and Bridges, City Councilman, 

and member of the Public School Board. From 1865 to 1871, he served on the St. Louis 
County Court. In 1869 he helped to found the Missouri Historical Society, serving 
as Vice-President until 1872. 9

Although he came from a slave-owning, hence Democratic family, Judge Long 
adhered to the Republican Party, largely because of his friendship with Grant. 
When Grant acquired White Haven and other land on the Gravois Creek, Judge Long 
took responsibility for its management. During Grant's second term as President, 
he appointed Judge Long to the posts of Surveyor and Collector of Customs and 
Disbursing Agent for the port of St.Louis, which positions he held from 1874 to 1876.

Judge Long and his first wife Frances Elizabeth Pipkin (1820-1863) had six 

children. The Judge married twice more, the third time (1869) to his first cousin 
Mary Nelson Sappington (died 1903). One of his granddaughters, born in 1879, was 
named Nellie Grant Long in honor of the then ex-President's own daughter. It is 
said that Grant's last letter was written to John Fenton Long. 10

Previous Owners
A chronology of past ownership is as follows:

1. William Lindsay Long d. 1849
2. Thomas Sandford Long to 1857
3. Lemuel J. Pardee 1857-1865
4. Alton J. Long 1865-1877
5. William H. Long 1877-d. 1915

6. Ida K. Long -1930
7. George Holman Bishop and Ethel Ronzoni Bishop 1930rl972

8. St. Louis County 1972

As noted, William Lindsay Long bequeathed to his youngest son "the plantation 
where I now live." Thomas Sandford Long sold the portion of the property that 
included the original bouse, while retaining other property in the vicinity. The 
buyer, Lemuel J. Pardee, held the property only long enough to give his name to the 
road fronting the house and then sold it to Alton J. Long, son of Harrison L. Long 
who in turn sold the house and twenty-six of the seventy-one acres to his brother 
William H. Long, from whom it descended to Ida K. Long.
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When George H. Bishop and his wife Ethel Ronzoni Bishop acquired the property 

in 1930, it was a relatively barren tract of ten acres. The house was covered with 

clapboard siding and was generally in a state of disrepair. The Bishops, who were 

both M.D.'s associated with Washington University Medical School, removed the siding 

rebuilt the front porch, and made alterations to the interior of the house that 

brought it up to contemporary standards. They also improved the planting around the 

house to screen it from the road and pursued their interest in gardening around the 

house and in the greenhouse wing which they added to the west of the house.

In 1972 the Bishops deeded the remaining 2.43 acres of their property with the 

house to St. Louis County, with life tenancy rights. Mr. Bishop died in 1974 and 

Mrs. Bishop early in 1975. The County took over responsibility for the property 

April 1 , 1975.11 At present it is occupied by a caretaker and is not open to the 

public.

The survey of Missouri's historic sites is based on the selection of sites as 

they relate to theme studies in Missouri history as outlined in "Missouri's State 

Historic Preservation Plan." The William Long Log House, therefore, being nomin 

ated to the National Register of Historic Places as an example of the themes of 

"Exploration and Settlement" and "Society."

FOOTNOTES

1. Thomas Scharf, History of St. Louis City and County, Vol. I (Philadelphia, Louis 

H. tverts and Co., 1883), P. 579. ——————

2. Louis Houck, A History of Missouri, Vol. II (Chicago, R. R. Donnelley, 1908), p. 71.

3. St. Louis [Missouri] Globe-Democrat. October 14, 1917; Scharf Vol. 11, p. 1880; 

Houck Vol. II; p. 70.

4. Lucas Collection, Missouri Historical Society, Letter 1-28-1818 of Ann L. Hunt; 

"Mr. Hunt has bought William Long's farm on the Gravois to which we intend to 

move the first of April."

5. Long Collection, Missouri Historical Society.

6. Historic American Buildings Survey, MO-1186, sheet 1.

7. Scharf, p. 580.

8. Will of William L. Long, Book E. Number 5, pages 462-464, Records of St. Louis 

City (formerly County).
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9. The United States Biographical Dictionary, Missouri Volume (N.Y., U.S. Biograph- 

ical Publishing Company, 1978), pp. 98-99.

10. Long Collection, Missouri Historical Society, Letter 1-21-1886 of J.D. Grant.

11. Bishop House file, St. Louis County Department of Parks and Recreation, Wayne L, 

Kennedy, Director.
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3. Houck, Louis. A History of Missouri. Chicago: R. R. Donnelley, 1908, Vol. II, 

pp. 70-72.

4. Missouri Historical Society, Long Collection.

5. St. Louis [Missouri] Globe-Democrat. Magazine section, October 14, 1917, p. 4.

6. __ . "Crestwood's Mayor refuses to Sign Bill to Lease Log House." November 

1TTT976.

7. ____. "Fire Damages Historic Long House." November 15, 1976.

8 - St. Louis [Missouri] Post Dispatch. "Pictures," August 13, 1976, cover and p. 3,

9. ____. March 9, 1975.

10. ___. "Residents Push Crestwood on Historic House." November 11, 1976-

11. ____. "Won't Buy Log House." November 30, 1976.

12. Scharf, Thomas 0. History of Saint Louis City and County. Philadelphia; Louis 

H. Everts and Co., 1883, Vol. I, pp. 579-580 and Vol. II, P. 1880.

13. South County Journal, October 13, 1971, p. 8.

14. The United States Biographical Dictionary, Missouri Volume. N.Y.; United States 

Biographical Publishing Company, 1878, pp. 98-99.
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along the northeast edge of Garber road to the southeast boundary of property 
having the address 9389 Garber Road; hence northeast and then northwest along 

the boundaries of this property and northeast along the boundary of property having 
the address 9116 Pardee Spur to the edge of Pardee Spur, hence south along Pardee 
Spur to the starting point.

ITEM NUMBER 11 PAGE 1

James M. Denny, Section Chief, Nominations-Survey (State Contact Person)

Department of Natural Resources

Office of Historic Preservation

P.O. Box 176 314/751-4096

Jefferson City Missouri 65102



LONG, WILLIAM LOG HOUSE
Crestwood, Missouri
U.S.G.S. 7.5' Quadrangle
"Webster Groves, Mo.-111." (1954

revised 1968 and 1974)

Scale: 1:24,000
UTM Reference: 15/729710/4269525
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LONG, WILLIAM LOG HOUSE #1 
Oestwood, Missouri 

photographer: Esley Hamilton 
February, 1978

Neg. Loc.: St. Louis County Parks and 
Recreation Department, 7900 Forsyth, 
Clayton, Mo. 63105 
South facade; view looking north
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LONG, WILLIAM LOG HOUSE *2 

Crestwood, Missouri 

photograper: Esley Hamilton 

February, 1978

Neg. Loc.: St. Louis County Parks and 

Recreation Department, 7900 Forsyth, 

Clayton, Mo. 63105 

East facade; view looking west



T-1

r>
r



LONG, WILLIAM LOG HOUSE #3 

Crestwood, Missouri 

photographer: Esley Hamilton 

February, 1978

Neg. Loc.: St. Louis County Parks and 

Recreation Department, 7900 Forsyth, 

Clayton, Mo. 63105
West Facade; view looking east; showing 
greenhouse added after 1930.





LONG, WILLIAM LOG HOUSE 

Crestwood, Missouri 
photographer: Esley Hamilton 

February, 1978

Neg. Loc.: St. Louis County Parks and 

Recreation Department, 7900 Forsyth, 

Clayton, Mo. 63105 

North facade; view looking southeast; 
showing kitchen lean-to.





LONG, WILLIAM LOG HOUSE #5 

Crestwood, Missouri 
photographer: Esley Hamilton 

February, 1978
Neg. Loc.: St. Louis County Parks and 
Recreation Department, 7900 Forsyth, 
Clayton, Mo. 63105

First-floor interior view showing the east 
wall of the east room or living room with 
east fireplace.





LONG, WILLIAM LOG HOUSE #6 
Crestwood, Missouri 
photographer: Esley Hamilton 

February, 1978
Neg. Loc.: St. Louis County Parks and 

Recreation Department, 7900 Forsyth, 
Clayton, Mo. 63105
First-floor interior view showing the west 
wall of the west room or dining room with 
west fireplace.





LONG, WILLIAM LOG HOUSE #7 

Crestwood, Missouri 

photographer: Esley Hamilton 
February, 1978

Neg. Loc.: St. Louis County Parks and 

Recreation Department, 7900 Forsyth, 

Clayton, Mo. 63105

Second-floor interior view showing the west 
wall of the west room with fireplace





LONG, WILLIAM LOG'HOUSE 
Crestwood, Missouri *  
photographer: Dr. George Bishop 

possible ca. 1940
Neg. Loc.: St. Louis County Parks and 
Recreation Department, 7900 Forsyth 
Clayton, Mo. 63105

View of grounds to north and east of hou'se, 
looking north-west from driveway entrance at 
Pardee Spur, showing garage located directly 
north of house and landscaping introduced 
after 1930.




